Company No 5568060

**Sabien Technology Group Plc** Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2010

WEDNESDAY



A52

22/12/2010 COMPANIES HOUSE

259

Company Information

**DIRECTORS** 

Dr Clive Morton OBE (Chairman)

Alan O'Brien Gus Orchard Karl Monaghan

Dr Martin Blake (appointed 15 October 2010)

**SECRETARY** 

Gus Orchard

COMPANY NUMBER

5568060

**REGISTERED OFFICE** 

34 Clarendon Road

Watford Herts WD17 1JJ

**WEBSITE** 

www sabien-tech.co.uk

**AUDITORS** 

Kingston Smith LLP

Chartered Accountants And Registered

**Auditors** 

Devonshire House 60 Goswell Road

London EC1M 7AD

**BANKERS** 

Barclays Bank Plc 17 Plains Road Mapperley Nottingham NG3 5LG

**NOMINATED ADVISER** 

Altium Capital Limited 6<sup>th</sup> floor, Belvedere Booth Street Manchester M2 4AW

**BROKER** 

Altium Capital Limited 30 St James's Square London SW1Y 4AL

**REGISTRARS** 

Capita Registrars Northern House Woodsome Park Fenay Bridge Huddersfield HD8 0LA

**SOLICITORS** 

Moore Blatch 11 The Avenue Southampton Hants SO17 1XF

### **Contents**

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer's Report	4
Directors' Report	9
Corporate Governance	12
Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of Sabien Technology Group Plc	16
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income	18
Consolidated and Company Balance Sheet	19
Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statement	20
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity	22
Company Statement of Changes in Equity	23
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements	24

### **Chairman & Chief Executive Officer's Report**

We are pleased to report on the results for Sabien Technology Group Pic ("Sabien", "the Company" or "the Group") for the year ended 30 June 2010.

#### Sabien Technology Group highlights 2010

- Sales for the year up 44% to £973k from £675k
- Loss after tax before exceptional items down 37% to £517k from £825k
- Raised £400k bridging loan to repay General Capital's convertible loan of £483k
- Successful placement of shares raising £1,475m and repayment of bridging loan
- Sales from indirect partners increased by 34% to £154k from £115k representing 16% of total sales revenue
- Appointment in May 2010 of Altium as NOMAD and Broker

#### Highlights since the year end

- Sales orders received since 1 July 2010 total £813k representing 84% of the whole of the previous year's sales revenue
- This year's Project 10 is fully subscribed with large multi-site blue chip organisations
- Growing sales pipeline currently standing at c£3 5m which includes over 100 blue chip private and public sector multi-site organisations
- · Appointment of Dr Martin Blake to the Board

#### Introduction

For the period under review and subsequent to it, Sabien has continued to make steady progress in delivering new sales, developing its sales pipeline and establishing a reputation as a proven and trusted green technology provider in the UK.

#### History and market development

Sabien was set up in 2004 to commercialise M2G, an energy saving technology which reduces gas and oil consumption in commercial boilers. In May 2006, Sabien acquired the Intellectual Property and all commercial rights to M2G and floated on AIM in December 2006. In March 2009, Sabien obtained Underwriters Laboratories (UL) certification which enabled M2G to be sold in the USA.

The CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme (previously known as the Carbon Reduction Commitment) is now up and running and the Group is well placed to take advantage of the increasing interest in energy efficiency. The CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme came into force in April 2010 and was initially conceived as a mandatory cap and trade scheme requiring companies to purchase allowances from the government for their CO<sub>2</sub> emissions. All companies with half-hourly meters (HHMs) whose electricity consumption during 2008 exceeded 6,000 MWh (a cost of around £500,000) have to participate

The scheme had intended to recycle the revenue raised from the sale of allowances to those organisations participating in the scheme. The level of recycled payments would be determined by the organisation's performance in an energy efficiency league table, with the best performers receiving all the money they spent on allowances plus a bonus and the worst performers receiving only some of the money back. However, in the recent Comprehensive Spending Review, the government has now effectively turned the sale of allowances into a carbon tax, forcing all participants to purchase carbon allowances based on how much energy they use. We believe that this will have significant benefits for Sabien as organisations try to reduce their energy usage

#### Financial results

Turnover in the year was £973k compared with £675k for the same period last year. The loss after taxation was £517k (before exceptional gains) compared with £825k in the same period in 2009. After exceptional gains, the loss after tax was reduced to £344k. The exceptional gains arose from the early settlement of the loan to General Capital Venture Finance and a reduction in the provision for loan notes payable.

In August 2009, the Company successfully refinanced its short term debt to General Capital Venture Finance Ltd with a two year term loan from funds advised by Thames Valley Capital Ltd (TVC) As part of this transaction, the Company granted warrants to TVC at a 20% premium to the share price at that time amounting to 10% of the enlarged share capital of the Company. This is explained in greater detail in the Notes to the Financial Statements

Additionally in October 2009, in order to strengthen the balance sheet and provide additional working capital, the Group carried out a placing of shares which raised £1 475 million (gross) £400,000 of this placing was used to repay TVC's loan and this in turn reduced the number of warrants granted by almost 50% as well as leaving the Group with significant cash balances in hand.

At 30 June 2010, cash and cash deposits amounted to £965k (2009 £525k)

#### **Financial Reporting Review Panel**

The Financial Reporting Review Panel (FRRP) carries out a number of reviews of the audited accounts of companies each year. As part of this role, the FRRP undertook a review of the Group's report and accounts for the year ended 30 June 2009 and identified a presentation error in the cash flow statement that related to the reclassification of convertible loan notes. In correcting this error, there is no effect on the opening and closing cash position, comprehensive income or balance sheet as previously reported as the error was one of presentation only.

This error has been corrected in the presentation of the 2009 comparative numbers in the cash flow statement in the current financial statements. The principal corrections relate to the presentation of cash generated from operations and cash flows from financing activities. As a consequence of these corrections, cash outflow from operating activities originally reported as £257k was understated by £483k and should therefore have been reported as £740k and net cash outflow from financing activities originally reported as £514k was overstated by £483k and should therefore have been reported as £31k in the 2009 accounts.

The Panel has indicated in an announcement made today that it welcomes the corrective action taken by the directors and regards its enquiries into the company's accounts for the year under review as fully concluded

#### Overview

Results for the year were satisfactory although, frustratingly, delays by customers in placing orders meant that the Group did not achieve its target sales for the year to 30 June 2010. Since that date, the Group has seen a high level of contract wins totalling £813k. The phasing of contracts over financial period ends is an ever present issue as the Group develops critical mass but this does not distract from the fundamental momentum which we believe that M2G has in the current market.

The coalition government has ambitions to be the 'greenest government' ever and has a target of reducing energy consumption by 10% across central government properties which was actioned within weeks of the new government coming into power.

The opportunities for Sabien continue to be very positive with the implementation of the CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme (formerly the Carbon Reduction Commitment) in the UK, which became effective on 1 April 2010 and which, following the government's Comprehensive Spending Review, has now become a direct tax on energy usage in the country's largest companies. Most importantly, the scheme is no longer revenue neutral to the Exchequer Money paid for allowances will not now be recycled to participants and the league table on which repayments were to be based now has a purely reputational impact. A recent commentary by KPMG states that the scrapping of the revenue recycling could easily represent a five to ten fold increase in costs for most participants. The announced changes are likely to make all energy efficiency payback periods shorter which in turn makes Sabien's M2G an even more attractive proposition.

Reducing energy costs and commitments to reduce carbon emissions are driving the interest and demand for our products from public and private sector organisations. Sabien's M2G product is specifically aimed at providing a proven effective solution to the CRC problem for organisations which are affected by the CRC legislation. M2G reduces the cost of running gas and oil fired boilers and the associated carbon emissions by up to 35%.

During the year, around 40% of Sabien's revenue came from the public sector and this is expected to grow in the future despite the pressures being put on public sector finances. The public sector financing review is focused on driving efficiencies and reducing operating costs to include energy consumption and CO<sub>2</sub> emissions. Sabien's M2G offers a quick and cost effective solution to their energy efficiency problems and public sector organisations have benefited from Salix funding which offers them a route to finance the capital cost of their energy efficiency programmes. Our public sector M2G sales pipeline consists of a number of entities which have already received Salix funding approval.

We continue to see increasing interest from facilities management, energy/carbon consultancies and utility companies for Sabien's M2G product as these companies seek ways to reduce their clients' energy consumption and carbon emissions.

In the Group's interim report, we said that there had been strong customer demand with a significant year on year increase in sales quotations and a steadily increasing order book. As already announced, a number of significant orders have been received since the year end. Many of these orders are for initial phases of roll-out which are being installed and we expect to receive further significant orders from these customers for further phases of roll-out both in the current financial year and beyond

#### Project 10

We have continued to run our Project 10 (P10) paid pilot scheme and are fully subscribed for the current heating season with many well-known blue-chip private and large public UK multisite organisations. Clients include major food retailers, retail banks, leisure groups, hospital operators and local councils

This is now the 3<sup>rd</sup> year that we have run the P10 scheme whereby we agree to install M2Gs at up to 3 sites in each of 10 large prospective customers and to monitor the results obtained from the M2Gs for periods from 1 to 3 months. At the conclusion of the pilot period, a report is produced for each customer in which the results of the pilot are presented along with an estimate of the likely levels of savings in energy and CO<sub>2</sub> emissions were M2G to be deployed over the customer's estate

Most of the larger orders received since our listing in December 2006 were the result of Project 10 pilots. We continue to engage with previous participants with the view to obtaining orders in the current financial year Reducing gas consumption and  $CO_2$  remains a high priority for these organisations and we will update the market on future M2G orders accordingly

#### **Operational progress**

We continue to develop and strengthen our technical expertise in the energy efficiency market and to help our clients reduce energy costs and carbon emissions. We have been commended by all our clients on our project planning, installation quality and for delivering their M2G rollout within budget. During the period we appointed a further installation partner, SEC Contracting, a division of Scottish & Southern Electric Energy Group.

We are continuing to develop our indirect partner channels and are beginning to see results from them. In the past year, indirect partnership agreements have been signed with Serco, British Gas, Balfour Beatty and Jones Lang LaSalle along with a number of smaller facilities management companies and energy consultancies. These alliances generated 16% of total revenue in the last financial year and we would expect this number to rise this year and in future years.

We continue to participate in trade shows and exhibitions and have generated a large volume of sales prospects from these. Sabien's name is increasingly being recognised in the sector of energy efficiency and the number of prospects that contact us directly as a result of client referrals and our marketing efforts has increased materially. Over the past year, the company has figured on the pages of the Daily Telegraph, Financial Times, The Mail on Sunday, Investors Chronicle and Shares Magazine and continues to feature in all the key industry trade titles.

We are looking at increasing our presence in the US market where we believe there is potential and we will be looking to appoint further distributors as and when suitable companies become identified. This will be done in a careful and cost effective manner but could open a very large market for our M2G product.

#### Strategy and new products

Sabien's strategy is to become a supplier of choice for private and public sector organisations that are faced with delivering on their energy and carbon reduction strategies. The Company is continuing with this objective of delivering its commercially viable energy-efficiency technology both in the UK and overseas to a wider base of blue-chip clients.

We are in the early stages of looking at modifying our M2G product to address other energy efficiency challenges facing our clients. We do not believe at this stage that there will be any significant costs involved in bringing a new application to the testing and piloting stages as we will be leveraging our existing Intellectual Property in the M2G.

We have also begun the process of looking at other green technologies from overseas markets that we can sell into our existing customer base to complement our current product offerings.

#### Board, management and people

We would like to thank our fellow directors and all the Company employees whose efforts have contributed to the progress of the Company over the last twelve months. Their efforts have been crucial to our achievements.

#### Outlook

The Group has made a good start to the new financial year and since 1 July 2010 has received purchase orders totalling £813k, representing the equivalent of 84% of last year's turnover, all of which will be recognised as revenue in the current financial year

The size of the business pipeline at c £3.5m is at a record level. We have a high quality blue-chip private and large public customer base. These facts plus the level of orders received, which represent to a large extent initial phases of roll-out and which should generate significant future revenues, along with a well-controlled cost base, all enable the Directors to feel confident about the future.

**Dr Clive Morton OBE** 

Chairman

28 October 2010

Alan O'Brien

Chief Executive Officer

### **Directors' Report**

For the year ended 30 June 2010

The directors present their report and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2010. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

#### Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that year. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to.

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

In determining how amounts are presented within items in the statement of comprehensive income and balance sheet, the directors have had regard to the substance of the reported transaction or arrangement, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles or practice

So far as each of the directors is aware at the time the report is approved.

- There is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and
- The directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

#### **Principal Activities**

The principal activity of the Group during the year was the design, manufacture and sale of M2G, an energy saving product which is proven to reduce energy consumption on commercial boilers by up to 35%

#### **Review of Business**

A review of the business, its development and performance for the year and its position at the year end, together with the future prospects of the Group, is contained in the Chief Executive Officer's Report

#### **Key Performance Indicators**

Financial The management's focus is on the development of the sales pipeline, the maintenance of healthy gross margins and prudent cost control. The two main performance indicators are unit sales and maintenance of a healthy gross profit margin. During the year, the group sold 539 units (2009: 407 units) and the gross profit margin was 84% (2009.

85%) Margins in the future are expected to fall to around 75% as business expands and indirect sales increase.

Non-financial. The management is constantly aware of the need to recruit and retain key personnel

#### Governance and the Board

The Board's governance system provides balanced support for the executive management team in the development of the Group's strategy and with the need to ensure effective monitoring of its implementation. The composition of the Board has remained unchanged in the year Dr Martin Blake was appointed to the Board on 15 October 2010. The full Board and its committees have considered the significant events of the year and their impact on the Group's business and reputation.

The audit committee is currently chaired by Karl Monaghan; the remuneration committee is chaired by Dr Clive Morton. The Board remains confident in the work of those committees and the overall system of governance.

#### **Results and Dividends**

The Group loss for the year, after taxation, amounted to £344k (2009 £825k loss) In view of the cumulative losses, no dividend is proposed

#### **Risk Management Objectives and Policies**

The Group places great importance on internal control and risk management. A risk-aware and control-conscious environment is promoted and encouraged throughout the Group. The Board, either directly or through its committees, sets objectives, performance targets and policies for management of key risks facing the Group.

The key business risks are set out below.

**Commercial** – the Group operates in a competitive market and faces competition for its M2G product from alternative technologies and products that claim to compete with it but which are technically inferior. The risk is mitigated by the recognition in the market of the quality of the M2G product, the breadth of the customer base and the added services that the Group supplies through its management of the installation process.

**Economic** – the Group is subject to the same economic risks that other businesses have been subject to during the economic downturn. The Group sells into both the Public and Private sectors and monitors the mix of its customers to ensure that it does not rely on any one particular sector or sub-sector for its revenue

**Employee risk** – the Group recognises that retention of its key staff is essential for its future prospects. It has entered into contractual arrangements with all key personnel and has designed and implemented share incentive schemes to encourage staff loyalty.

**Financial** – the Group has a specific exposure to credit risk, with lesser exposure to interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations. The directors seek to manage these risks by working closely with customers, suppliers and financiers in order to maintain good working relationships.

The risks outlined above are not an exhaustive list of those faced by the Group and are not intended to be presented in any order of priority

The Group holds bi-monthly Management Meetings at which, inter alia, business risks are reviewed and any areas that are causing concern are discussed. A plan of action to resolve issues is then put in place

#### **Directors**

The Directors who served during the year and their beneficial interest in the Company's issued share capital were.

	Date of appointment	Ordinary	/ share	s of 5p each	
		2010	%	2009	%
A.O'Brien	25 October 2005	11,700,000	37.2	11,700,000	44.0
G Orchard	10 October 2006	100,000	0.3	100,000	0 4
C.Morton	20 December 2006	500,000	1.6	500,000	1.9
K Monaghan	1 September 2007	1,258,850	40	1,258,850	47

There has been no change in Directors' holdings since the year end

Dr Martin Blake, who was appointed a Director on 15 October 2010, does not have a beneficial interest in the Company's issued share capital

#### **Substantial Shareholdings**

At the date of this report, the Company had been notified that (other than Directors) the following were interested in 3% or more of the issued capital of the Company.

	Number of	% of issued
	Ordinary shares	share capital
SE Global SA	3,908,333	12 <del>4</del> 1
TVI 2 Limited	2,950,000	9.37
Brewin Dolphin Ltd	1,807,098	5 74
Invesco Limited	1,650,000	5 24
Noble AIM VCT plc	1,587,000	5 04

At the date of this report, there were 31,486,511 shares in issue. TVI 2 Limited also held 1,518,356 warrants which are convertible into ordinary shares at a price of 6.42p at any time after 7 February 2010 for a period of 5 years from 7 August 2009

#### **Group's Policy for Payment of Creditors**

It is the Group's policy to agree appropriate terms and conditions in advance for its suppliers and to make payment in accordance with those terms and conditions, provided that the supplier has complied with them.

On average the Group pays undisputed amounts to its trade creditors within 30 days. At 30 June 2010, creditors' days were 17 days (2009. 21 days)

#### **Auditors**

The auditors, Kingston Smith LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 489 of the Companies Act 2006

This report was approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 28 October 2010 and signed on its behalf by:

**Gus Orchard** 

**Company Secretary** 

### **Corporate Governance**

The Combined Code requires that disclosures be made on how the principles of the Code have been applied (known as "the appliance statement") and whether or not the Company has complied with these principles (known as "the compliance statement"). The Combined Code is intended to promote the principles of openness, integrity and accountability.

# Statement of compliance with the Code of Best Practice and applying the principles of good governance

The Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance throughout the Group As an AIM company, it is not obliged to report its compliance with the Principles of Good Governance and Code of Best Practice published by the Committee on Corporate Governance ("The Combined Code") Nonetheless, the Company is committed to meeting these principles as far as it reasonably can and the commentary below reflects the extent to which the Company has complied with The Combined Code during the period under review.

#### **Board effectiveness**

The Board, which is set up to manage the Company and Group, meets formally at least six times per year and in the period under review met on eleven occasions. At the period end, the Board comprised four directors – two executive and two non-executive.

At each of these regular Board meetings, the Board receives the latest financial and management information available which generally consists of.

- Management accounts setting out actual performance against budget;
- Management discussion on variance analysis,
- Working capital cash flow position; and
- Sales forecasts and forecasting methodologies.

The Board reserves to itself a range of key decisions to ensure that it retains proper direction and control of the Company whilst delegating authority to individual directors who are responsible for the day to day management of the business

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and can also seek independent professional advice, if necessary, at the Company's expense

#### **Board appointments**

All appointments to the Board are discussed at a full Board meeting and each member is given the opportunity to meet the individual concerned prior to an appointment being made.

As permitted by the Combined Code, due to the small size of the Board, it is considered inappropriate to establish a Nominations Committee

#### **Chairman and Chief Executive Officer**

The Board has shown its commitment to dividing responsibility for running the Board and the business by appointing Dr Clive Morton as Non-Executive Chairman and Mr Alan O'Brien as Chief Executive Officer.

#### **The Remuneration Committee**

The Remuneration Committee, which is composed of the non-executive directors and chaired by Dr Clive Morton, meets as required during each financial year. It is responsible for reviewing the performance of the executive directors and setting the scale and structure of their remuneration and the basis of their service agreements with due regard to the interest of shareholders. The Remuneration Committee shall also determine the allocation of share options to employees. It is a rule of the Remuneration Committee that a Director shall not participate in discussions or decisions concerning his/her own remuneration

#### The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, which is composed of the non-executive directors and, during the year under review was chaired by Karl Monaghan meets no less than twice a year. It is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of auditors and the audit fee, for reviewing the conduct and control of the annual audit and for reviewing the operation of the internal financial controls. It also has responsibility for the reporting of the financial performance of the Company and for reviewing financial statements prior to publication.

#### **Re-election of Directors**

Directors retire by rotation in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association which prescribe that at every Annual General Meeting one third of the directors for the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one third, shall retire from office. Non-executive directors are initially appointed for a three year term but their appointment is terminable by either party on three months' written notice.

#### **Shareholder relations**

The Company maintains a website (<u>www.sabien-tech.co.uk</u>) where the Group's statutory accounts will be accessible. The website conforms to the requirements of AIM rule 26 and all relevant information can be found there

Queries raised by shareholders are dealt with either by the Chief Executive Officer or the Company Secretary

#### **Accountability and audit**

The Board believes that the Annual Report and financial statements play an important part in presenting all shareholders with an assessment of the Group's position and prospects. This is achieved in the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer's Report of Operations which contains a detailed consideration of the Group's financial position and prospects.

#### **Internal control**

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The purpose of the system of internal control is to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors have established an organisational structure with clear operating procedures, lines of responsibility and delegated authority. In particular, there are clear procedures for capital investment appraisal and approval and financial reporting within a comprehensive financial planning and accounting framework. The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and concluded that such a function is not currently appropriate given the size of the Group

### **Remuneration Report**

This report should be read in conjunction with note 10 to the accounts. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the level and make-up of the remuneration of Executive Directors. In doing so, the Committee's aims are

- To determine the policy for the remuneration of the executive directors;
- · To review the ongoing appropriateness of the remuneration policy,
- To approve the design of and review share incentive plans and bonus schemes and to determine the awards to be made under such plans or schemes;
- To ensure that the remuneration policies adopted by the Company give due regard to any legal requirements, the provisions and recommendations in the Combined Code and the AIM rules and associated guidance

#### The components of remuneration are

- Basic salary and benefits determined by the Remuneration Committee which are included in employment agreements and reviewed annually,
- Bonuses based upon performance of the Company and the individual concerned,
- · Share options.

#### Service contracts

The employment contracts of the Executive Directors with the Company are terminable by either party with no less than six months' notice in writing to the other. The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Board within the limits set out in the Articles of Association.

The service contracts of the Directors, one third of whom who are eligible for re-election at the Annual General Meeting, are as follows.

	Notice period
A O'Brien	6 months
G Orchard	6 months
C Morton	3 months
K.Monaghan	3 months

#### Directors' remuneration during the period (audited)

	Salaries and fees £'000	Taxable benefits £'000	2010 Total	2009 Total
Executive directors				
A O'Brien	136	1	137	137
G.Orchard	90	3	93	93
Non-executive directors				
C Morton	30	-	30	30
K Monaghan	25	-	25	25
Total	281	4	285	285

Fees paid to C Morton and K Monaghan were paid to The Morton Partnership and Ashling Capital LLP respectively.

#### Sabien Technology Group Share Option Plan (audited)

Under the Plan, the Group can make awards of share options to selected Directors and eligible employees

Details of options for directors who served during the year are as follows

	Date of Grant	1 July 2009	Granted	30 June 2010	Exercise price	Date from which exercisable	Expiry Date
A O'Brien	14/12/06	500,000		500,000	52p	14/12/09	14/12/13
	01/04/10		74,483	74,483	54 5p	01/04/13	01/04/17
G Orchard	14/12/06	346,152		346,152	52p	14/12/09	14/12/13
	01/04/10		51,565	51,565	54 5p	01/04/13	01/04/17
K Monaghan	12/10/07	100,000		100,000	50p	12/10/10	12/10/14
	01/04/10		14,323	14,323	54 5p	01/04/13	01/04/17
C Morton	01/04/10		55,046	55,046	54 5p	01/04/13	01/04/17
Total		946,152	195,417	1,141,569			

The mid-market price of the Company's shares at the end of the financial year was 43 5p

**Dr Clive Morton OBE** 

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

28 October 2010

# Independent Auditors' report to the Members of Sabien Technology Group Plc

We have audited the Group and Company financial statements (the "financial statements") of Sabien Technology Group Plc for the year ended 30 June 2010 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken for no purpose other than to draw to the attention of the company's members those matters we are required to include in an auditors' report addressed to them. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to any party other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

#### Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 9, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

#### Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit includes obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of, whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's and the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements

#### Opinion on the financial statements

In our opinion.

- The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 June 2010 and of the group's loss for the year then ended;
- The group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and
- The parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

#### Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

The information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

#### Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or
- The parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
- · Certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

John Staniforth (Senior Statutory Auditor)

lingoten Snith Let

For and on behalf of Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor

Devonshire House 60 Goswell Road London EC1M 7AD

Date: 28 October 2010

# **Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income**

For the year ended 30 June 2010

	Notes	2010 £'000	2009 £'000
Revenue Cost of sales		<b>973</b> (160)	<b>675</b> (102)
Gross profit		813	573
Administrative expenses		(1,322)	(1,379)
Operating Loss		(509)	(806)
Investment revenues Other gains and losses Finance costs	6 7 8	5 173 (13)	26 - (45)
Loss before tax	5, 10	(344)	(825)
Тах	11	-	-
Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent company		(344)	(825)
Other comprehensive income			
Transfer from Shares to be issued Transfer to Retained earnings Other comprehensive income for the year		(18) 18	-
Total comprehensive income for the year		(344)	(825)
Loss per share in pence – basic and diluted	12	(1 2)	(3 1)

The notes on pages 24 to 41 form part of these financial statements.

### **Consolidated and Company Balance Sheet**

As at 30 June 2010

Company Reg No: 5568060

		Group		Company	
		2010	2009	2010	2009
	Notes	£'000	£′000	£'000	£'000
			as		as
			restated		restated
Non-current assets					
Property, plant and equipment	14	16	34	-	-
Intangible assets	15	744	864	-	-
Investment in subsidiaries	16	760	-	216	544
Total non-current assets		760	898	216	544
Current assets					
Inventories	17	128	137	_	_
Trade and other receivables	18	295	162	547	133
Cash and cash equivalents	19	965	525	903	510
Total current assets		1,388	824	1,450	643
		_,555	•	-, •	· · ·
Total assets		2,148	1,722	1,666	1,187
Current liabilities					
Trade and other payables	20	220	609	84	515
Total current liabilities	20	220	609	84	515
iodi di d		220	005	0.	313
Non-current liabilities					
Long-term provisions	21	_	222	-	222
Total non-current liabilities		-	222	-	222
Total liabilities		220	831	84	737
Net Assets		1,928	891	1,582	450
EQUITY					
Equity attributable to equity holders of					
the parent					
Share capital	22	1,574	1,329	1,574	1,329
Other reserves	~~	2,767	1,649	3,538	2,420
Retained (losses)/earnings		(2,413)	(2,087)	(3,530)	(3,299)
Total equity		1,928	891	<b>1,582</b>	4 <b>50</b>
i ocui cquicy		-,5-0		1,502	-130

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 28 October 2010 and were signed on its behalf by.

Alan O'Brien

**Chief Executive Officer** 

Gus Orchard Finance Director

The notes on pages 24 to 41 form part of these financial statements.

# **Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statement**

For the year ended 30 June 2010

	Gro	oup	Com	pany
	2010	2009 As	2010	2009 As
		restated		restated
	£'000	£′000	£′000	£′000
Cash flows from operating activities		(0.5.00)	(0.40)	
Loss before taxation	(344)	(825)	(249)	(1,120)
Adjustments for				
Depreciation and amortisation	64	40	-	-
Exceptional gains	(247)	-	(247)	
Impairment provision	74	288	328	1,280
Reduction in long term provisions	-	(287)		(287)
Finance income	(5)	(26)	(20)	(57)
Finance expense	13	45	15	45
Transfers (from)/to equity reserves Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other	18	27	18	28
receivables	(133)	47	(414)	123
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories	9	(16)	-	-
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other				
payables (as previously reported)	33	450	(9)	491
Prior year adjustment (note 23)	-	(483)	-	(483)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other				
payables (as restated)	33	(33)	(9)	8
Cash generated from/(used in) operations	(E40)	(257)	(F00)	
(as previously reported)	(518)	(257)	(580)	503
Prior year adjustment (note 23)	-	(483)	-	(483)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations	(540)	(740)	/F00\	20
(as restated)	(518)	(740)	(580)	20
Corporation taxes recovered/(paid)	-	-	-	-
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating	(540)	(740)	(500)	20
activities	(518)	(740)	(580)	20
Cash flows from investing activities				
Investment in subsidiary company	-	-	-	(800)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment	-	(4)	-	-
Finance income	5	26	20	57
Net cash generated by/(used in)				
investing activities	5	22	20	(743)
Cook Save from Engaging activities				
Cash flows from financing activities	1 300		4 200	
Proceeds from share placement	1,399	-	1,399	-
(Repayment of)/proceeds from long term	(440)	(E14)	(440)	/E4./\
borrowings (as previously reported)	(440)	(514)	(440)	(514)
Prior year adjustment (note 23)	-	483	-	483
(Repayment of)/proceeds from long term	(400)	(24)	(400)	/541
borrowings (as restated)	(400)	(31)	(400)	(31)
Finance expense	(5)	-	(6)	-

Net cash from financing activities (as				
previously reported)	953	(514)	953	(514)
Prior year adjustment (note 23)	-	483	-	483
Net cash from financing activities	953	(31)	953	(31)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash				
equivalents	440	(749)	393	(754)
Cash and cash equivalents at the				
beginning of the year	525	1,274	510	1,264
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of				
the year	965	525	903	510

The notes on pages 24 to 41 form part of these financial statements.

### **Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity**

For the year ended 30 June 2010

	Share capital	Share premium	Merger reserve	Shares to be issued	Share based payment reserve	Retained earnings	Total equity
	£′000	£'000	£′000	£′000	£'000	£'000	£′000
Balance at 1 July 2008 Changes in	1,329	2,268	(771)	92	33	(1,262)	1,689
Loss for the year Employee share option scheme – value of services	-	-	-	-	-	(825)	(825)
provided	-	-	-	-	27	-	27
Balance at 30 June 2009	1,329	2,268	(771)	92	60	(2,087)	891
Changes in equity for year							
Loss for the year	-	-	-	-	-	(344)	(344)
Issue of Share Capital Transfer from	245	1,154	-	-	-	-	1,399
shares to be issued Employee share option scheme –	-	-	-	(54)	-	18	(36)
value of services provided Balance at 30 June 2010	-	-	-	-	18	-	18
carried forward	1,574	3,422	(771)	38	78	(2,413)	1,928

The notes on pages 24 to 41 form part of these financial statements

# **Company Statement of Changes in Equity**

For the year ended 30 June 2010

	Share capital	Share premium	Shares to be issued	Share based payment reserve	Retained earnings	Total equity
	£′000	£′000	£′000	£'000	£′000	£′000
Balance at 1 July 2008	1,329	2,268	92	33	(2,179)	1,542
Changes in equity for year Loss for the year Employee share option scheme –	-	-	-	-	(1,120)	(1,120)
value of services provided Balance at 30 June	-	-	-	28	-	28
2009	1,329	2,268	92	60	(3,299)	450
Changes in equity for year					(240)	(240)
Loss for the year Issue of Share capital Transfer from Shares	245	1,15 <del>4</del>	-	-	(249) -	(249) 1,399
to be issued Employee share option scheme –	-	-	(54)	-	18	(36)
value of services provided Balance at 30 June 2010 carried	-	-	-	18	-	18
forward	1,574	3,422	38	78	(3,530)	1,582

The notes on pages 24 to 41 form part of these financial statements

### **Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements**

For the year ended 30 June 2010

#### General information

The Company is incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered office is given on page 2.

The nature of the Group's operations and principal activities are set out in the Directors' Report.

#### 1. Accounting policies

The following significant principal accounting policies have been used consistently in the preparation of the consolidated financial information of the Group. The consolidated information comprises the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group").

a) **Basis of Preparation**. The financial information in this document has been prepared using accounting principles generally accepted under International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), as adopted by the European Union

The directors expect to apply these accounting policies which are consistent with International Financial Reporting Standards in the Group's Annual Report and Financial Statements for all future reporting periods.

During the year, the Company raised £1 475m (£1.4m net) via a placing to the market. The directors therefore believe that the Group is a going concern and have accordingly prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and are presented in £000 unless otherwise stated.

b) Basis of consolidation. The consolidated balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income includes the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries at 30 June 2010. The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 30 June each year Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

Except as noted below, the financial information of subsidiaries is included in the consolidated financial statements using the acquisition method of accounting. On the date of acquisition the assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiaries are measured at their fair values.

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Accounting for the Company's acquisition of the controlling interest in Sabien Technology Limited. The Company's controlling interest in its directly held subsidiary, Sabien Technology Limited, was acquired through a transaction under common control, as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The directors note that transactions under common control are outside the scope of IFRS 3 and that there is no guidance elsewhere in IFRS covering such transactions

IFRS contain specific guidance to be followed where a transaction falls outside the scope of IFRS. This guidance is included at paragraphs 10 to 12 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. This requires, inter alia, that where IFRS does not include guidance for a particular issue, the directors may also consider the most recent pronouncements of other standard setting bodies that use a similar conceptual framework to develop accounting standards. In this regard, it is noted that the UK standard FRS 6 addresses the question of business combinations under common control.

In contrast to IFRS 3, FRS 6 sets out accounting guidance for transactions under common control which, as with IFRS 3, are outside the scope of that accounting standard. The guidance contained in FRS 6 indicates that merger accounting may be used when accounting for transactions under common control.

Having considered the requirements of IAS 8, and the guidance included in FRS 6, it is considered appropriate to use a form of accounting which is similar to pooling of interest when dealing with the transaction in which the Company acquired its controlling interest in Sabien Technology Limited.

In consequence, the Consolidated Financial Statements for Sabien Technology Group Plc report the result of operations for the year as though the acquisition of its controlling interest through a transaction under common control had occurred at 1 October 2005. The effect of intercompany transactions has been eliminated in determining the results of operations for the year prior to acquisition of the controlling interest, meaning that those results are on substantially the same basis as the results of operations for the year after the acquisition of the controlling interest

Similarly, the consolidated balance sheet and other financial information have been presented as though the assets and liabilities of the combining entities had been transferred at 1 October 2005.

The Group did take advantage of section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 and debited the difference arising on the merger with Sabien Technology Limited to a merger reserve.

c) **Property, plant and equipment.** Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Assets are written off on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life commencing when the asset is brought into use. The useful lives of the assets held by the Group are considered to be as follows:

Office equipment, fixtures and fittings

d) **Intangible assets**: Intellectual property, which is controlled through custody of legal rights and could be sold separately from the rest of the business, is capitalised where fair values can be reliably measured

Intellectual property is amortised on a straight line basis evenly over its expected useful life of 20 years.

Impairment tests on the carrying value of intangible assets are undertaken.

- At the end of the first full financial year following acquisition
- In other periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be fully recoverable

If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value, less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only in so far that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in income immediately

- e) **Fixed asset investments**. Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less any provision for impairment in value.
- f) **Deferred consideration**: Deferred consideration is discounted from the anticipated settlement date at the Group's weighted average cost of capital
- g) Inventories: Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost and net realisable value.

#### h) Financial Instruments

#### Financial Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables and cash. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are classified as loans and receivables and are recognised at fair value less provision for impairment. Trade receivables, with standard payment terms of between 30 to 65 days, are recognised and carried at the lower of their original invoiced and recoverable amount. Where the time value of money is material, receivables are carried at amortised cost. Provision is made when there is objective guidance that the Group will not be able to recover balances in full. Balances are written off when the probability of recovery is assessed as being remote.

The Group's financial assets are disclosed in notes 18 and 19 Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in note 18

#### Financial Liabilities

The Group has two categories of financial liabilities which are trade payables and other short term monetary liabilities and compound financial instruments (see note j below). Trade payables and other short term monetary liabilities are recorded initially at their fair value and subsequently at amortised cost. They are

classified as non-current when the payment falls due greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts

j) Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise convertible loan notes. The liability component of the instrument is initially recorded at the fair value of a similar instrument which does not have an equity component. The difference between the net proceeds and the fair value is recorded as the equity component and recognised directly in equity. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method and the amortisation charge arising recorded in the income statement for the period

k) Revenue recognition: Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon delivery and installation at a customer site or delivery to a customer's incumbent facilities manager which subsequently carries out the installation itself. Where goods are delivered to overseas distributors, revenue is recognised at the time of shipment from the company's warehouse.

Revenue from services generally arises from pilot projects for customers and is recognised once the pilot has been completed and the results notified to the customer. Pilot projects generally have a duration of between 1 and 3 months. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the group.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

Share-based payments: The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS2 Share-based Payments. The Group issues options to certain employees. These options are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the Group's estimate of the shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Fair value is measured by use of the Black-Scholes model. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural conditions

- m) **Operating leases** Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership remain with the lessor are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on the straight line basis over the lease term.
- n) **Taxation** The charge for current tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction which affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply when the asset or liability is settled. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

#### o) Standards, amendment and interpretations effective in 2010

The Company has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations during the year

IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' (effective from 1 January 2009) IAS 24 (Revised), 'Related Party Disclosures'

# p) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2010 but not relevant

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to published standards are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 but they are not relevant to the Company's operations:

IAS 23 (Amendment), 'Borrowing Costs' (effective from 1 January 2009)
IAS 27 'Consolidated and separate financial statements (effective from 1 July 2009)

IFRS 3 (Revised), 'Business Combination' (effective from 1 July 2009) IFRIC 18 'Transfer of assets to customers'

# q) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or later periods, but the Company has not adopted them early.

IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments' (effective 1 January 2013)
IFRIC 19, 'Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments' (effective 1 July 2010)

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company

#### 2. Financial Risk Management

#### Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks ansing from its use of financial instruments, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. This note describes the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them

Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented throughout these financial statements. So far, there have been no substantive changes in the Group's exposure to financial instrument risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from previous periods unless otherwise stated in this note.

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which the financial instrument risk arises, are as follows

- trade and other receivables
- cash at bank
- · trade and other payables

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group's risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the Group's finance function. The Board reviews regular finance reports from the Finance Director through which it evaluates any risk exposures with a view to minimising any potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. So far, the Group has not used derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposures as its activities and operations exposure to such risks are not deemed significant. Transactions that are speculative in nature are expressly forbidden

# Details regarding the policies that address financial risk are set out below:

#### (i) Credit Risk

Credit risk anses principally from the Group's trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents. It is the risk that the counterparty fails to discharge its obligation in respect of the instruments

#### Trade Receivables

The nature of the Group's operations means that all of its current key customers are established businesses and organisations in both the public and private sector. The credit risks are minimised due to the nature of these customers and the concentration of sales to date within established economies. The Group will continually review its credit risk policy, taking particular account of future exposure to developing markets and associated changes in the credit risk profile. The carrying amount in the balance sheet, net of any applicable provisions for loss, represents the amount exposed to credit risk and hence there is no difference between the carrying amount and the maximum credit risk exposure.

#### (II) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital. It is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due and have the availability of such funds for its operations. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve which comprises cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow. At the balance sheet date, these projections indicate that the Group expects to have sufficient liquid resources to meet its obligations under all reasonable expected circumstances for the forthcoming year. The Group continues to monitor its liquidity position through budgetary procedures and cash flow analysis

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due in less than 1 year equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 30 June 2010	Less than 1 year £'000	Between and 2 years £'000	1	Between 2 and 5 years £'000	Over years £'000	5
Trade and other						
payables and accruals	220		-	-		-
Convertible Loan notes	-		-	-		-
At 30 June 2009 Trade and other						
	126					
payables and accruals	126		-	-		-
Convertible Loan notes	<del>4</del> 83		-			-

The Group does not have any derivative financial instruments.

#### (III) Market Risk

Market risk arises from the Group's use of interest bearing, tradable and foreign currency financial instruments. There is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates (interest rate risk), foreign exchange rates (currency risk) or other market factors (other price risk).

#### (IV) Interest Rate Risk

The Group invests its surplus cash in a spread of fixed rate short term bank deposits to minimise risk and maximise flexibility. In doing so it limits its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates that are inherent in such a market. Overall risk is not regarded as significant and the effect of a one percentage point decrease in the average interest rate during the year would have resulted in an increase in post-tax loss for the year of less than £1k (2009, £8k).

#### (v) Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates internationally through its distributorship arrangements in Europe and the US and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the Euro and the US dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities. Given the current scale of the Group's overseas operations, overall currency risk is considered to be low.

An increase of one percentage point in the average 2010 Euro and US dollar exchange rates would have increased the Group's loss after tax by less than £1k (2009. £1k).

#### (vi) Price Risk

The Group does not hold external investments in equity securities and therefore is not exposed to price risk

#### (vii) Capital Risk Management

The Group's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide future returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Group seeks to maintain, at this stage of its development, sufficient funding drawn primarily from equity, to enable the Group to meet its working and strategic needs. The Group may issue new shares or realise value from its existing investments and other assets as may be deemed necessary.

The Group centrally manages borrowings, investment of surplus funds and financial risks. The objective of holding financial investments is to provide efficient cash and tax management and effective funding for the Group.

#### (viii) Fair Value Estimation

Holding trade receivables and payables at book value less impairment provision is deemed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the group for similar financial instruments

#### 3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

#### Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated and company financial statements requires the Group and Company to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The directors base their estimates on historical expenence and various other assumptions that they believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgements about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

In the process of applying the Group's and Company's accounting policies, management has made a number of judgements and estimations, of which the following are deemed to have the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements

#### (i) Revenue Recognition

No significant criteria are required by the Group in regard to revenue recognition that are not covered by the accounting policy.

#### (II) Share-based Payments

The calculation of the estimated fair value of share options and warrants granted can only reasonably be assessed once such options and warrants are exercised. To date, no options or warrants have been exercised and the Group is therefore reliant upon the calculations as explained in the accounting policy and note 25 to the accounts in arriving at an estimated fair value in line with the requirements of IFRS2.

#### (III) Going Concern

The directors have prepared projections of the Group's anticipated future results based on their best estimate of likely future developments within the business and therefore believe that the assumption that the Group is a going concern is valid. The financial information has therefore been prepared on the 'going concern' basis.

#### (iv) Impairment of Assets

In line with the going concern assumption, based on their best estimate of likely future developments within the business, the directors consider that an impairment provision against the carrying value of Investment in Subsidiaries is necessary in the Company's balance sheet as at the balance sheet date

#### (v) Deferred Tax Assets

Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with an assessment of the effect of future tax planning strategies. No deferred tax asset was held at the balance sheet date (2009·£Nil) as it is not deemed probable that losses will be relieved in the short term

#### (vi) Intellectual Property and Long Term Provisions

As a result of a review by the directors of the unit sales likely to arise over the next year, the value of Intellectual Property has been deemed to have been impaired and a provision of £74k has been made (see note 15). The Provision for Deferred Consideration has been reduced by £125k and the liability is now reflected as a short term liability. In 2009, a reduction was made in the Provision for Deferred Consideration for £288k and a similar adjustment was made to the value of Intellectual Property and Investment in Subsidiaries (see note 20).

#### 4. Segmental Reporting

Based on risks and returns, the directors consider that the primary reporting format is by business segment which is the supply of energy efficiency products. Therefore the disclosures for the primary segment have already been given in these financial statements. The secondary reporting format is by geographical analysis by destination. However, no geographical segment represents more than 10% of revenue and is therefore not reportable

#### 5. Loss before tax

The loss before tax is stated after charging/(crediting):

	Year ended 30 June 2010 £'000	Year ended 30 June 2009 £'000	
Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets	18	17	
Amortisation of intangible assets	46	23	
Operating lease rentals – land and buildings	18	31	

#### 6. Investment revenues

Interest red	ceivable	Year ended 30 June 2010 £'000 <b>5</b>	Year ended 30 June 2009 £'000
7.	Other gains and losses		
		Year ended 30 June 2010 £'000	Year ended 30 June 2009 £'000
Less cost o Gain on rev	tlement of convertible loan f warrants (note 22) versal of loan note provision property impairment provision	159 (38) 126 (74)	- - -
Total net o	ther gains	173	-
8.	Finance costs		
		Year ended 30 June 2010 £'000	Year ended 30 June 2009 £'000
Interest pa	yable	13	45
9.	Auditors' remuneration		
		Year ended 30 June 2010 £'000	Year ended 30 June 200 £'000
	le to the Group's auditor for the audit of the	71	30
	nual accounts le for other non-audit services	21 2 <b>23</b>	20 4 <b>24</b>
10.	Staff costs		
		Year ended 30 June 2010 £'000	Year ended 30 June 2009 £'000
Wages and		743	765
Social secu	rity costs	80 <b>823</b>	86 <b>851</b>
The average follows	ge monthly number of employees, including	directors, during	the year was as
		Year ended 30 June 2010 Nos.	Year ended 30 June 2009 Nos.
Directors		4	4
Administrat	ion	10 <b>14</b>	9 <b>13</b>

#### 11. Corporation tax

	Year ended 30 June 2010 £'000	Year ended 30 June 2009 £'000
Current tax	-	-
Deferred tax	-	-
Total tax recovery for the year	-	-
The tax recovery for the year can be reconciled to the follows:	loss per the inco	ome statement as
Loss before tax	(344)	(825)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities at standard UK	( )	` ,
corporation tax rate of 21% (2009: 21%)	(72)	(173)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes	2	3
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation	3	1
Other short term timing differences	57	152
Unrelieved tax losses	10	17
Current tax recovery	-	-

No provision has been made to recognise a deferred tax asset as future profitability is uncertain. The aggregate amount of deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance sheet is estimated at £2,273k (2009. £1,942k) which at the standard tax rate would equate to £477k (2009. £408k)

#### 12. Loss per share

The calculation of loss per share is based on the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of £344k (2009. £825k) and a weighted average number of shares in issue during the period of 29,847,844 (2009. 26,570,511). At the year end, warrants for 1,518,336 shares and options over 1,953,527 shares were in issue. These warrants and options have not been taken into account in calculating loss per share as they are anti-dilutive

#### 13. Loss attributable to the members of the Parent Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Income Statement of the parent company is not presented as part of these financial statements. The loss dealt with in the accounts of the Parent Company is £249k (2009 £1,120k)

#### 14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Group	2010 £′000	2009 £′000
Cost		
At 1 July	73	69
Additions	-	4
At 30 June	73	73
Depreciation		
At 1 July	(39)	(22)
Charge for the year	(18)	(17)
At 30 June	(57)	(39)
Net Book Value		
At 30 June 2010	16	34
At 30 June 2009	34	47

The Company held no property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2010 and 2009.

#### 15. Intangible Assets

Group	2010 £'000	2009 £'000
Intellectual Property		
Cost At 1 July	1,017	1,305
Adjustment to carrying value (note 20)	(74)	(288)
At 30 June	943	1,017
Amortisation		
At 1 July	(153)	(130)
Charge for the year	(46)	(23)
At 30 June	(199)	(153)
Net Book Value		
At 30 June 2010	744	864
At 30 June 2009	864	1,175

Intellectual property represents the rights to the M2G product acquired from the inventors. As a result of a review by the directors of the unit sales likely to arise over the next year, the carrying value of Intellectual Property has been reduced by £74k In 2009, both the carrying value of Intellectual Property and the Provision for Deferred Consideration were reduced by £288k and a similar adjustment made to the value of Investment in Subsidiaries (see notes 16 and 20)

The remaining amortisation period for Intellectual Property is 16 years.

The Company held no intangible assets at 30 June 2010 and 2009.

#### 16. Investment in subsidiaries

Company	2010 £′000	2009 £′000
Cost & Net Book Value At 1 July Additions Adjustment to carrying value (note 20) At 30 June	3,675 - (74) <b>3,601</b>	3,163 800 (288) <b>3,675</b>
Impairment Provision At 1 July Provision for impairment At 30 June	(3,131) (254) <b>(3,385)</b>	(2,139) (992) <b>(3,131)</b>
At 30 June 2010 At 30 June 2009	216 544	544 1,024

Details of the subsidiary undertakings at the balance sheet date are as follows

Name of company	Country of incorporation	Class of share	Nature of business	Proportion of voting rights
Sabien Technology Limited	England	Ordinary	Managing carbon through energy reduction	100%
Sabien Technology IP Limited	Northern Ireland	Ordinary	Ownership of Intellectual Property	100%

A further provision for impairment has been made by the Company to reflect the net asset position of Sabien Technology Limited at 30 June 2010. In 2009, as a result of a review by the directors of the unit sales likely to arise over the next year, the Provision for Deferred Consideration was reduced by £288k and a similar adjustment was made to the value of Intellectual Property and Investment in Subsidiaries (see notes 15 and 20) In 2009, the Company converted £800k of debt owed by its subsidiary, Sabien Technology Limited, to equity.

#### 17. Inventories

Group	2010	2009
•	£′000	£'000
Goods held for resale	128	137

#### 18. Trade and other receivables

	2010	2009	2010	2009
	Group	Group	Company	Company
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£′000
Trade receivables	235	118	-	_
Other receivables	60	44	9	-
Amounts owed by Group undertakings	-	-	538	133
	295	162	547	133

Other receivables comprise deposits.

The value of trade receivables quoted in the table above also represents the fair value of these items and are due within one year.

Trade receivables are considered impaired if they are not considered recoverable. As at 30 June 2010, trade receivables of £53k (2009. £19k) were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

	2010	2009
	£′000	£'000
Up to 3 months	182	99
3 to 6 months	46	19
More than 6 months	7	-
	235	118

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies.

Pounds ster Euros US Dollars	rling			2010 £'000 287 8 - 295	2009 £′000 129 4 29 <b>162</b>
19.	Cash and Cash Equivalents				
Cash and	cash equivalents	2010 Group £'000 <b>965</b>	2009 Group £'000 <b>525</b>	2010 Company £'000 <b>903</b>	2009 Company £'000 <b>510</b>
20.	Trade and other payables				
Convertible Deferred co	nty and other taxation	2010 Group £'000 19 41 - 61 99 220	2009 Group £'000 4 31 483 - 91 <b>609</b>	2010 Company £'000 1 (8) - 61 30 84	2009 Company £'000 2 (5) 483 - 35 <b>515</b>

The deferred consideration arises from the acquisition of Sabien Technology IP Limited (formerly Taran Systems Limited) in May 2006. The consideration is payable dependent upon unit sales for a period of four years from the date of acquisition and the amount recognised is based on the directors' assessment of unit sales likely in the four years following acquisition. The initial estimates of the deferred consideration liability have been revised as additional information became available with a corresponding adjustment being made to intellectual property

In May 2010, the level of sales achieved to that date has resulted in the directors reducing the value of Intellectual Property by £74k (note 15) The Provision for Deferred Consideration, which had previously been shown as a long term liability (see note 21), has been reduced by £125k resulting in an exceptional gain being made (see note 6). In 2009, the Provision for Deferred Consideration was reduced by £288k and a similar adjustment was

made to the value of Intellectual Property and Investment in Subsidiaries (see notes 15 and 16)

Deferred consideration has been discounted from the anticipated settlement date at the weighted average cost of capital prevailing at the acquisition date of 9 56%. The interest charged against income in the year amounted to £4k (2009: £13k)

In November 2009, the Company transferred £40k from the bank account held in the joint names of the Company and the vendor to the vendor solely.

At 30 June 2010, the Company had made a payment of £51k into a bank account held in the joint names of the Company and the vendor of Sabien Technology IP Limited in respect of the liability arising from sales in the fourth year. This amount is shown under Cash and Cash Equivalents in the balance sheet

Convertible loan notes represented the discounted amount payable to General Capital Venture Finance ("GCVF") Limited in respect of notes bearing a zero coupon. Convertible loan notes were discounted from the anticipated settlement date at the rate of 7%, the balance of £92k was reflected in equity as Shares to be Issued. On 7 August 2009, the Company entered into an arrangement with TVI 2 Limited ("TV2") and General Capital Venture Finance Limited ("GCVF") whereby TV2 advanced the Company £400k which was used to repay with GCVF's agreement their loan of £500k, which had been scheduled for repayment in December 2009. The loan from TV2 was repayable in 2 years and bore interest at 8% p.a. On 26 October 2009, the Company repaid this loan. The interest charged against income in respect of this loan amounted to £7k

The difference between the carrying value of the GCVF loan and amount actually repaid resulted in an exception gain of £159k (note 6) An adjustment was also made to the Shares to be Issued reserve of £92k as this reserve was no longer required. The interest charged against income in the year amounted to £3k.

#### 21. Long term liabilities

	2010	2009	2010	2009
	Group	Group	Company	Company
	£'000	£′000	£′000	£′000
Deferred consideration (see note 20)	-	222	-	222

#### 22. Share capital

	2010 £′000	2009 £′000
Authorised 50,000,000 Ordinary shares of 5p each (2010 and 2009)	2,500	2,500
Allotted, called up and fully paid 31,486,511 Ordinary shares of 5p each (2009 – 26,570,511)	1,574	1,329

On 14 October 2009, the company placed 4,916,000 shares at a price of 30p each raising £1 475m (£1 4m after expenses).

#### **Share warrants**

On 7 August 2009, the company granted 2,952,279 warrants to TVI 2 Limited, exercisable at 6 6p each over a period of five years. Subsequent to the repayment of the loan to TVI 2 Limited in October 2009, the number of warrants granted has reduced to 1,518,356 and are now exercisable at a price of 6.42p each. These warrants represent 4 6% of the enlarged share capital including Ordinary shares potentially to be issued under the Warrant instrument.

The Group has recognised an exceptional charge of £38k arising from these warrants in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2010 and this has been credited to the Shares to be Issued Reserve in the balance sheet (note 6).

#### Share options (see note 25)

At the balance sheet date, the following options had been granted:

Date of	At 1 July	Grants	At 30 June	Exercise	Exercisable	Exercisable
Grant	2009		2010	price	from	to
14	1,134,612	-	1,134,612	52p	December	December
December					2009	2016
2006						
11 July	99,010	-	99,010	50.5p	July 2010	July 2017
2007	·					
12 October	100,000	-	100,000	50p	October	October
2007					2010	2017
1 Aprıl	-	620,305	620,305	54.5p	April 2013	Aprıl 2017
2010		•		•	•	·
Total	1,333,622	620,305	1,953,927			

#### 23. Prior Year Adjustment

#### **Cash Flow**

The Cash Flow statements for the year ended 30 June 2009 contained errors in the Cash flow from operating activities and the Cash flows from financing activities relating to the presentation of the General Capital Venture Finance loan (note 20) of £483k which had changed from a long to a short term liability during the year

	Group £'000	Company £'000
Cash flows from operating activities		
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables as previously		
reported	450	491
Prior year adjustment	(483)	( <del>4</del> 83)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables as restated	(33)	8
Cash flows from financing activities		
(Repayment of)/proceeds from long term borrowings as		
previously reported	(514)	(514)
Prior year adjustment	483	483
(Repayment of)/proceeds from long term borrowings as		
restated	(31)	(31)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		
Net effect of prior year adjustment	-	-

The presentation in last year's financial statements was incorrect as the loan had not been repaid but only reclassified from long to short term. However, the net effect of the prior year adjustment on the Net decrease in Cash and cash equivalents was £nil and there was no effect on the Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning and at the end of the year nor on the Statement of comprehensive income, Balance sheets and Statement of changes in equity.

#### **Balance Sheet**

The Balance Sheets for the year ended 30 June 2009 incorrectly showed short term provisions of £574k for the Group and £518 for the Company separately in current liabilities. These have been included in Trade and Other Payables in the current year financial statements.

#### 24. Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following total commitments under non-cancellable operating leases.

Group	Land & buildings		
·	2010	2009	
	£′000	£′000	
Expiry date:			
Between two and five years	37	61	

#### 25. Share based payments

The Company has issued share options under a share option scheme for directors and employees set up in November 2006 under which approved and unapproved share options were granted prior to the flotation of the Company in December 2006. The Company adopted the "Sabien Technology Group Share Option Plan" at the time of flotation and it is intended that options will only be granted under this scheme in future.

Under this scheme, directors and employees hold options to subscribe for 5p ordinary shares in Sabien Technology Group Plc at prices based on the mid-market price on the day preceding the relevant share option grant. See note 22 for details of options in issue at the balance sheet date. There are no performance conditions attached to these options.

The value of the options is measured using the QCA-IRS Option Valuer based on the Black Scholes model. The inputs into the Black Scholes model were as follows:

	2010	2009
Share price at date of grant	50 5p	50 5p
Exercise price at date of grant	54.5p	50p
Weighted average fair value	5 <b>p</b>	5p
Volatility	30%	30%
Expected life	3 years	3 years
Risk free interest rate	6%	6%

Expected volatility was determined by reference to volatility used by other similar companies.

The expected life used in the model reflects the lack of performance conditions attached to the options granted.

The Group has recognised a charge of £18k arising from the share based payments noted above in the income statement for the year ended 30 June 2010 and this has been credited to Other Reserves in the balance sheet

The following reconciles the outstanding share options granted under the employee share option scheme at the beginning and end of the financial year

	Number 2010	Weighted average exercise price 2010	Number 2009	Weighted average exercise price 2009
Balance at beginning of the				2000
financial year Granted during	1,333,622	51.7 <b>4</b> p	1,660,544	51.79p
the year Cancelled during	620,305	54.50p	-	-
the year Balance at end of the financial	-	-	(326,922)	52 00p
year Weighted average remaining	1,953,927	52 62p	1,333,622	51 74p
contractual life	7.6 years		7 6 years	

#### 26. Related party transactions

Key management are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, controlling and directing the activities of the Group In the opinion of the Board, the Group's key management are the directors of Sabien Technology Group Plc Information regarding their remuneration is given above in the Remuneration Report. The Company has entered into service agreements with Dr Clive Morton and Karl Monaghan with entities either controlled by them or in which they have an interest as shareholders. Fees are paid in accordance with those agreements. In addition, Ashling Capital LLP, an LLP controlled by Karl Monaghan, received a fee of £24k in respect of consultancy work in the year.

During the year, the Company made working capital loans to its subsidiary, Sabien Technology Limited, of £405k. At the year end, the amount outstanding was £538k